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BETIER PEOPLE, BETTER REBULTED

Independent Auditors® Report

Members of the Lincoin County
Board of Supervisors
Merrill, Wisconsin

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lincoln County, Wisconsin, as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, which collectively comprise the Lincoln County, Wisconsin’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility
of Lincoln County, Wisconsin's management. QOur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of Pine Crest Nursing Home, an
enterprise fund, which statements reflect total assets of $8,659,355 as of December 31, 2008, and total
revenues of $10,715,218 for the year then ended. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose
report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Pine Crest
Nursing Home, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Lincoln
County, Wisconsin, as of December 31, 2008, and the respective changes in financial position and cash
flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 27, 2009, on
our consideration of Lincoln County, Wisconsin’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

: . |rrr|. r*
] families
2200 Riverside Drive * PO. Box 23819 ° Green Bay, Wl 54305-3819 ° schencksolutions.com - n grod COMpARY
Phone: 920-436-7800 » 800-676-0820 © Fax: 920-436-7808 T

Bchernsilt 5¢




The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 13 and the budgetary comparison
information on 51 through 58 are not required parts of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Lincoln County, Wisconsin’s basic financial statemenis. The combining fund statements
listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

_/JW s

Green Bay, Wisconsin
July 27, 2009




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Lincoln County, we offer the readers of Lincoln County’s financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the County
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of Lincoln County exceeded liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by $76,186,444 (net assets). Of this amount, $22,675,142 (unrestricted net
assets) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

e The government’s total net assets decreased by $180,353.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, Lincoln County’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $13,176,888, a decrease of $12,143,019
in comparison with the prior year. Seventy-three percent of this total amount,
$9,662,867, is available for spending at the government’s discretions (unreserved
fund balance).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved undesignated fund balance for the
general fund was $332,127, or 2% of total general fund expenditures.

e In 2008 Lincoln County expended $11,315,136 on capital projects as the County
moved forward in its long planned for building project.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Lincoln County’s
basic financial statements. The County’s basic financial statements are comprised of
three components: government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and
notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary
information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the County’s finances in a manner
similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets reports what a government owns (assets) and owes
(liabilities), as well as the net difference between the two (net assets). This statement
reports the financial position of Lincoln County at December 31, 2008. Over time,
increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the County is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the County’s net assets
changed during the most recent year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
undetlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardiess of the timing of related cash
flows. Thus revenues and expenses are reported in these statements for some items that




will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned
but unused vacation leave).

In the statement of net assets and the statement of activities, the County has two kinds of

activities: _

¢ Governmental Activities - Most of the County’s programs and services are reported
here, including general government, public safety, public works, health and human
services, culture recreation and education, and conservation and development.

¢ Business-Type Activities - These services are provided on a charge for goods or
services basis to recover all or most of the services provided. The County’s Nursing
Home, Solid Waste Landfill, and Forestry are reported here.

Infrastructure assets (which include roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, street and
sidewalks, drainage systems, and lighting systems) are reported at historical cost, or
estimated historical cost, in the governmental activities column in the government-wide
financial statements. They are part of the County Roads and Bridges governmental fund
and were not required to have been reported before the implementation of GASB
Statement Number 34.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to
maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or
objects. The County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. Al of the funds of the County can be divided into
three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. Fund
financial statements provide detailed information about the County’s major funds. The
County’s major governmental funds are the General Fund, County Roads and Bridges
Fund, Social Services Fund, Capital Project Fund and Developmental Disabilities Fund.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental
fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the year.
Such information may be useful in evaluating the County’s near-term financing
requirements. -

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the County’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund
balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and
-changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.




The County maintains twelve individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund,
the county roads and bridges special revenue fund, social services special revenue fund,
and developmental disabilities special revenue fund, and additionally the capital project
fund all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other seven
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund
data for each of these seven nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of
combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for all of its governmental funds
except the jail assessment special revenue fund and the capital project fund. As patt of
the basic governmental fund financial statements, budgetary comparison statements have
been provided for the general fund and for each individual, major special revenue fund to
demonstrate compliance with the budget.

Proprietary Funds - When the County charges customers for the services it provides -
whether to outside customers or to other units of the County - these services are generally
reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all
activities -are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. In
fact, the County’s enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds) are the same as the
business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements but provide more
detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds. The County
uses enterprise funds to account for its PineCrest Nursing Home, Solid Waste Landfill,
and Forestry Department. The County uses internal service funds (the other component
of proprietary funds) to report activities that provide supplies and services for the
County’s other programs and activities. The County uses internal service funds to
account for its Health Insurance Trust Fund and the Highway Department.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit
of parties outside the County. The County’s fiduciary funds include its employees’
benefit cafeteria plan and clerk of courts collection fund. All of the County’s fiduciary
activities are reported in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets. We exclude these
net assets from the County’s other financial statements because the County cannot use
these assets to finance its operations. The County is responsible for ensuring that the
assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes.

Notes to basic financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is
essential fo a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements.

Other information.  The combining fund statements are presented immediately
following the required supplementary information.




Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of the County’s
financial position. At the close of 2008, the County’s assets exceeded liabilities by
$76,186,444.

By far the largest portion of the County’s net assets (68%) reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, etc.); less
any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The County uses
these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although, the County’s investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used
to liquidate these liabilities.

Linecoln County's Net Assets
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals
2008 | 2007 2008 | 2007 2008 | 2007

Current and other assets $ 36,860,491 § 46,152,511 $ 13,022292 § 12,141,539 § 49,832,783 § 58,294,050
Capital assets i 55,495,453 44,968,604 9,263,482 9,601,535 64,758,935 54,569,539

Total Assets 92,355,944 91,120,515 22,285,774 21,743,074 114,641,718 112,863,589
Long-term Kabilities

outstanding 12,636,880 12,622,398 5,246,316 3,325,340 17,883,196 17,947,738
Other liabilities 18,528,108 16,635,772 2,043,970 2,018,782 20,572,078 18,654,554

Total Liabilitics 31,164,988 29,258,170 7,290,286 7,344,122 38,455,274 36,602,292
Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, .

net of related debt 45,413,490 43,805,386 6,408,431 6,436,669 51,821,921 50,242,055

Restricted 1,134,434 599,492 554,947 623,068 1,689,381 1,222,560

Unrestricted 14,643,032 17,457,467 8,032,110 7,338,215 22,675,142 24,796,682

Total Net Asseis $ 61,190,956 § 61,862,345 § 14995488 § 14398952 § 76186444 3 76,261,297

An additional portion of the County’s net assets (2.2%) represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of
unrestricted net assets ($22,675,142) may be used to meet the County’s ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, Lincoln County is able to report positive balances in
all three categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its
separate governmental and business-type activities.




Governmental Activities. Governmental activities decreased the County’s net assets by

$776,889. Key elements of this decrease are as follows:

Lincoln County's Change in Net Assets

Revenues:

Program revenves:
Charges for services
Operating grants and

contributions

(eneral revenues:
Property taxes
Other taxes
Grants and conttibutions
not restricted to
specific programs
Other
Total Revenmes

Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Health and human services
Culiure and recreation
Conservation and

development

Interest on long-term debt
Narsing home
Forestry
Landfitl

| Total Expenses

Increase (decrease) in net
assets before transfers
Transfers
Increase (decrease) in
net assets
[Net Assets - January |
Net Assets - December 31

Governmental Business-type
Activitics Activities Totals
2008 | 2007 2008 2007 2008 | 2007
§ 7659247 § 6958697 § 13405484 $ 12298153 § 21064731 § 19256850
10,865,599 9,861,812 311,423 268385 11,177,022 10,130,197
11,406352 10,652,603 510,000 450,000 11,916,352 11,102,603
1,990,919 2,017,687 - - 1,990,919 2,017,687
1,276,527 1,295,686 - - 1,276,527 1,295,686
758,683 1,235,122 1,916 2,022 760,599 1,237,144
33,957,327 32,021,607 14,228,823 13018560 48,186,150 45,040,167
5,968,795 4,562,490 . - 5,968,795 4,562,490
8,146,524 7,405,150 i - 8,146,524 7,405,150
6,912,933 7,007,418 6,912,933 7,007,418
11,615,557 10,845,351 - - 11,615,557 10,845,351
§18,143 304,839 - - 818,143 804,839
886,918 945,169 - - 886,918 945,169
520,820 202,978 - - 520,820 202,978
- - 10,901,014  10,179001 10,901,014 10,179,001
- - 990,643 982,486 990,643 982,486
- - 1,605,156 1,367,661 1,605,156 1,367,661
34,869,690 31,773,395 13496813 12,520,148 48,366,503 44,302,543
(912,363) 248,212 732,010 489,412 (180,353) 737,624
135474 615,256 (135,474) (615,256) - -
(776,389) 863,468 596,536 (125,8449) (180,353) 737,624
61,967,845 - 60,998,877 14398952 14,524,796 76,366,797 75,523,673
$ 61,190,956 $ 61,862,345 $ 14995488 § 14398952 $ 76186444 § 76,261,207




Interest revenue showed a negative variance of $331,428 when compared to the 2008
budget. The Sheriff Department fell short $395,044 in projected outside housing
revenue. Additionally the County applied $1,075,163 of fund balance to 2008
expenditures. A major portion of this ($614,364) was used to upgrade the County’s
phone systems and data cabling.

In addition, the County’s efforts in expenditure restraint in the general fund and several
of the special revenue funds which showed operating expenditures less than budgeted or
revenues greater than budgeted and resulted in transfers of funds to the general fund
offset some of the fore mentioned shortfalls.

Business-type Activities Business-type activities increased Lincoln County’s net assets
by $596,536. Key elements of this decrease are as follows:

e Net assets for Pine Crest nursing home increased by $232,498 due in large part to
resident days exceeding budgeted days by 772 days and Supplemental Program
revenues exceeding budget by $287,913.

e Net assets for Forestry increased by $381,165. This was largely due to forest land
revenue exceeding budget expectations by $320,771.

e Net assets for Solid Waste Landfill decreased by $17,127. This is largely due to an

- increase of anticipated future construction costs of 21 percent.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, Lincoln County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of Lincoln County’s governmental funds is to provide .

information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing Lincoln County’s financing. requirements. In
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of a fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, Lincoln County’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $13,176,888, a decrease of $12,143,019 in comparison
with the prior year. Approximately 73 percent of this total amount, $9,662,867
constitutes unreserved fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s
discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is reserved to indicate that it is not
available for new spending because it has already been committed 1) $164,734 for
prepaid items that benefit periods beyond the end of the current year, 2) $74,558 for
insurance deposits, 3) $1,086,905 for non-liquid delinquent taxes, 4) $401,626 for long-
term advance fo highway, 5) $401,239 for grant and program fees, 6) $28,466 for jail
assessment, and 7) $1,356,493 for the County building project.




The general fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current
fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the general fund was $8,114,197, while the total
fund balance was $9,840,085. Of the $8,515,823 unreserved fund balance, $2,006,126
has been designated by the County for the 2009 budget or for future capital improvement
projects and $5,735,944 has been designated for future cash flow leaving $332,127 as
undesignated unreserved. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful
to compare the total unreserved fund balance, undesignated unreserved fund balance, and
total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Total general fund unreserved fund balances
represent 59% of total general fund expenditures, undesignated unreserved fund balance
represents 2% of total general fund expenditures.

The fund balance of Lincoln County’s general fund decreased by $1,047,136 during the
current fiscal year. Key factors in this decrease are as follows:

e Funds applied totaled $1,075,163. The majority of these funds were spent on one
time expenditures such as a new phone system ($614,364) and a digital elevation
project ($259,844). The remainder of these funds were program revenues or grant
revenues that were received in 2007 and spent in 2008.

e County investments underperformed the budget by $331,428. This was due to a
sharp decline in the interest rates due to the recession.

The County Roads and Bridges Fund has a fund deficit of $(78,088) at December 31,
2008 a reduction of the fund deficit by $32,167 when compared to the previous year. The
deficit balance will be covered by the 2009 budget which includes funds for a project that
was completed in 2008.

The Social Services fund has a total fund balance of $988,856. The fund balance of the
Social Services fund increased by $207,722 during the current year. The key factor in
this increase is that the anticipated placement expenditures in the Community Youth and
Family Aids Program were $203,387 less than anticipated due to a lack of placement
needs in 2008.

Developmental Disabilities fund has a total fund balance of $50,000 at December 31,
2008. Of this fund balance, $49,584 is unreserved and $416 is reserved for prepaid
items.

The fund balance of the Developmental Disabilities fund decreased by $186,467 during -

the current year. Key factor in this decrease was the 2006 audit finding which sharply
reduced the billing rate the County was able to bill for services. A payment of $334,796
was made to the State in 2008 to partially satisfy a lability of $502,194 incurred from the
2006 audit finding.

- The Capital Project fund has a total fund balance of $1,356,493 on December 31, 2008.

This is a decrease of $11,040,384 during 2008. The County is continuing a building
project budgeted at $16,190,795. The project will be completed by the end 0f 2010.




Proprietary funds. The County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information
found in the business-type activities of the County’s government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of PineCrest Nursing Home operations at the end of the year
amounted to $3,055,174, those of Solid Waste Landfill amounted to $3,195,664, and
those of Forestry amounted to $1,781,272. Other factors concerning the finances of these
funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the County’s business-type
activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights.

In the course of the year, the Finance and Insurance Committee and the County Board of
Supervisors revised the budget. The budget amendments fell into three main categories.
The first category included amendments and supplemental appropriations that were
approved shortly after the beginning of the year and reflect the actual beginning balances
(versus the amounts that we estimated during the budget process in October 2006). The
second category included several increases in appropriations to prevent budget overruns.
The third included grants or purchases that were not anticipated and budgeted for
originally. Other budget amendments were not made for variances in revenue lines
unless it was for a grant.

During the year, the budget for expenditures was increased by $383,776. Those
amendments are briefly summarized below:

s $(3,136) - The actual amount of grant and designated funds not spent down in 2007
was less than the amount estimated as designated for non-lapsing appropriations
when the budget was prepared.

e $(810,034) — The County’s contingency fund was drawn down by the Sheriff
Department for increased outside housing of inmates ($194,068), by Developmental
Disabilities due to the lack of budgeted local funds due to the 2006 audit finding
($229,040), and by the County Roads fund due to higher than expected snow removal
($326,305). ' '

e $614,364 — CIP funds for a new County phone system and data cabling upgrade not
originally budgeted.

o  $171,508 — Increases in grant and program revenues during 2008 not originally
budgeted. '

Actual expenditures were $598,759 Jess than the amended budget. Explanations not
already provided elsewhere in this report are summarized below:

$122,200 - Cost of digital elevation project was less than anticipated.
$78,763 — Phone Upgrade and cabling project have not been completed
$43,596 — Reduced contracted services and vehicle expenses in Zoning.
$65,118 — Land Conservation projects that have not been completed.
$54,185 — Unspent retained fees in Land Records.

10
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On the revenue side, the original budget was decreased by $258,301 with budget
amendments. Significant amendments are summarized as follows:

s $555,345 — Decrease in tax levy in the General Fund and increase in County Road
Fund ($326,305) and Developmental Disabilities Fund ($229,040) to cover
previously mentioned expenditure overruns,

e $171,508 — Increase in grant and program revenues used to cover 2008 expenditures.

e $68,717 — Increase in forest land revenue.

Actual revenues were $713,014 lower than budgeted. Significant variances are as
follows: '

e Outside housing revenue in Sheriff Department was less than anticipated by
$395,044.
Interest revenue fell short of budget expectations by $331,428.
Zoning fees fell short of budgeted projections by $24,011.
Clerk of Courts fines and fees exceeded budget by $95,493.

Capital Asset and Debt Administrétion

Capital assets. Lincoln County’s investment in capital assets for its govemmental and
business-type activities as of December 31, 2008, amounted to $64,758,935 (net of
accurnulated depreciation) compared to $54,569,539 in 2007. This investment in capital
assets includes land, land improvements, infrastructure, buildings and improvements,
equipment and vehicles, intangible assets, and work in progress. The net increase in the
County’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $10,189,396 or
nineteen percent.

'11-._.:1




Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

e  Work in progress increased $6,879,251 due to the County building project.

» Pine Crest Nursing Home added a therapy room addition for $555,356.

¢ Buildings increased 5,780,225 due to the completion of the Lincoln County Service
Center.

Lincoln County's Capital Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activitics Totals

2008 | 2007 2008 | 2007 2008 | 2007
Land 3 206,075 $ 206,075 § 2,600485 $ 2,600,485 $ 2,806,560 § 2,806,560
Land improvements 353,196 242,274 2,016,548 2,508,926 2,369,744 2,751,200
Infrastructure 29,892,449 31,228,546 - - 29,892,449 31,228,546
Buildings and improvements 9,139,523 3,788,032 3,882,097 3,576,031 13,021,620 7,364,063
Eguipment and vehicles 5,241,503 5,806,124 764,352 836,247 6,005,855 6,642,371
Work in progress 10,656,050 3,696,953 - 79,846 10,656,650 3,776,799
Intangible asseis 6,657 - - - 6,657 -
Total $ 55495453 $ 44,968,004 $ 9263482 $ 9,601,535 § 64,758,935 § 54,569,539

Additional information on Lincoln County’s capital assets can be found in Note 6.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, Lincoln County had a total
general obligation debt outstanding of $14,815,000 which is a decrease of $486,645. In
2007 the total general obligation debt outstanding was $15,301,645. All Lincoln County
general obligation debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the County. Lincoln
County maintains a Moody’s Rating of A2 for general obligation debt.

Lincoln County's Ouistanding 1.ong-term Obligations
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities . Totals
2008 | 2007 2008 | 2007 2008 | 2007
(eneral Obligation Debt
Bonds $ 11,965,000 $ 2,125,000 $ 2,850,000 % 3,180,000 $ 14815000 $ 5,305,000
Notes - 9,996,645 - - - 9,996,645
Total General Obligation
Debi 11,965,000 12,121,645 2,850,000 3,180,000 14,815,000 15,301,645
Capital lease 116,963 10,947 - - 116,963 10,947
Compensated absences 1,525,895 1,419,157 388,346 390,190 1,914,241 1,809,347
‘Total general long-term
obligations $ 13,607,858 § 13551749 § 3,238,346 § 3,570,190 § 16,846,204 $ 17,121,939
12
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Wisconsin statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a government entity may
issue to 5 percent of its total equalized valuation. Lincoln County’s available debt
capacity is $105,751,040, which is significantly in excess of Lincoln County’s
outstanding general obligation debt.

Additional information on Lincoln County’s long-term debt can be found in Note 7.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget Rates

e The unemployment rate for Lincoln County in May 2009 was 11.7 percent as
compared to 8.7 percent for the State of Wisconsin. The May 2009 rate for Lincoln
County was significantly higher than the May 2008 rate (5%).

o The general economic condition and outlook for the County is poor with few
employers planning to hire additional employees or expand in the next year.

¢ Inflationary trends in our region compare to national indices.

These factors were considered in preparing the County’s budget for the 2009 fiscal year.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund decreased
$991,055. Lincoln County had been planning to apply a portion of unreserved fund
balance for capital improvement projects that began in 2006. It is intended that this use
of available fund balance will reduce the need to raise taxes or borrow to complete the
capital projects.

Request for information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Lincoln County’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to the Finance Director, Lincoln County, 1104
East First Street, Merrill, WI 54452.
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 31, 2008
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18012425 3 7,488,811 25,501,236
Receivables, net:

Property taxes 11,714,361 423,140 12,137,501

Tax certificates and deeds 1,460,557 - 1,460,557

Agsessments 57,181 - 57,181

Accounts 1,024,094 1,585,579 2,609,673

Loans 445226 - 445226
Due from other govemnments ' 2,671,250 50,480 2,721,730
Inventores, at cost 1,002,559 265,547 1,268,106
Prepaid expenses 165,604 52,610 218214

Total current assets 36,553,257 9,866,167 46,419,424
Noncurmrent assefs:
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 74,558 3,156,125 3,230,683
Unamortized debt issue costs 232,676 - 232,676
Capital assets:

Land and construction in progress 10,862,125 2,600,485 13,462,610

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 44,633,328 6,662,997 51,296,325

Total capital assets 55,495,453 9,263,482 64,758,935
Total noncurrent assets 55,802,687 12.419,607 68,222.294
Total assets 92,355,944 22285,774 114,641,718
LIABILITIES
Current lizbilities:
Accounts payable 2,375,779 284,645 2,660,424
Accrued expenses 718,013 366,773 1,084,788
Compensated absences payable 783,481 317,008 1,100,489
Accrued claims 857,779 - 857,779
Deposits and advances 340,458 133,173 473,631
Due to other governments 483,549 169,229 652,778
Current portion of long-term obligations 187,497 350,000 537497
Deferred revenue 12,781,552 423,140 13,204,692
Total current liabilities . 18,528,108 2,043,970 20,572,078
Noncurrent liabilities:
Future closure payable - 2,669,927 2,669,927
Compensated absences payable 742,414 71,338 813,752
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations 11,894,466 2,505,051 14,399,517
Total noncurrent liabilities 12,636,880 5,246,316 17,883,196
Total liabilities 31,164,988 7,290,286 38,455,274
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of rélated debt 45,413,490 6,408,431 51,821,921
Restricted 1,134,434 554,947 1,689,381
Uunrestricted 14,643,032 £,032,11¢ 22,675,142
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 61,190,956 $ 14995488 76,186,444

‘These financial statements should be read only in connection with
the accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net:
Property taxes
Tax certificates and deeds
Assessments
Accounts
Loans
Due from other govemments
Due from other funds
Prepaid items
Advances
Restricted asseds:
Cash and cash equivalents

TFOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounis payable
Accrued lishilities
Deposits and advances
Due 1o other funds
Dueio other governments
Deferred revenue

Total lisbilities

¥and balances

Reserved for:
Prepaid items
Insurance deposits
Delinquent property taxes
Long-term portion of advance
Grant and program fees
Jail assessment

Uweserved, reported in:
General find
Special revenue funds
Dbt service fund
Capital project fund

‘Fotal fund balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSEN

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2008
Other Total
County Roads Social Develapmental Capital Gover tal Gover tal
General and Bridges Services Disabilities Praject Tunds Funds
3 7995523 % - 5 826,275 § 679,549 % 2165214 % Lo25,541 % 12,692,102
7,394,695 2,237,207 446,138 33,139 - 1,603,182 11,714,361
1,460,557 - - - - - 1,460,557
57,181 - - - - - 37,181
535,259 - 2,956 48,200 - 336,967 923,332
- - - - - 445,226 445,226
533,716 79,131 401,168 982,018 - 80,258 2,076,891
220,419 - - - - - 220,419
162,799 - 1,626 16 - 493 164,734
401,626 - - - - - 401,626
74,558 - - - - - 74,538
$ 18836333 § 2316938 3§ 1,677,563 § 1743322 3 2165214 § 3498667 % 30,231,037
3 340493 % - 3 169,164 § 254,198 3 807945 % 343692 % 1,915,492
363,412 - 52218 63,222 776 42,699 522327
241,760 - 21,187 77511 - - 340,458
- 157,819 - - - - 157.81%
178,131 - - 304,492 - 926 483,549
7,872,512 2,237,207 446,138 993,239 - 2,084,808 13,634,504
8,996,248 2,395,026 688,707 1,693,322 808,721 2472,125 17,054,149
162,799 - 1,026 416 - 493 164,734
74,558 - - - - - 74,558
1,086,905 - - - - - 1,086,905
401,626 - - - - - 401,626
- - 64,024 - - 331,215 401,239
- - - - - 28,466 28,466
8,114,197 - - - - - 8,114,197
- (73,088) 923,806 49,584 - 587,603 1,482,905
- - - - - 65,765 65,763
- - - - 1,356,493 - 1,356,493
9.840,085 {78,088) 983,856 590,000 1,356,493 1,019,542 13,176,888
$ 13836333 3 2316938 % 1677563 8§ 1,743322 & 2165214 § 3491667 % 30,231,037

‘Thesc financial statements should beread only in commection with
the accompanying notes to basic financial statements. :
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LINCOLN COUNTY WISCONSIN

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

Total fund balances for governmental funds

TO THE SFTATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 31, 2008

Total net assets used in governmental activities in the statement of net assets is different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:

Land 5 170,535

Construction in progress 10,656,050

Land improvements, net of $18,174 accumulated depreciation 193,262

Buildings, net of $7,243,801 accumulated depreciation 8,203,298

Machinery and equipment, net of $1,734,701 accumulated depreciation 1,264,001

Infrastructure, net of $19,585,108 accumulated depreciation 29,892,449
‘Total capital assets

[nternal service funds are used by the County to charge the cost of health insurance
and County road work to the individual funds. The assets and Liabilities of the
internal service funds are included in the governmental activities in the stafement
of net asseis. Internal service fund's net assets are:

Health insurance fund
Highway fund
Total internal service funds

$ 3,858,896
5,762,540

Long-term liabilities applicable to the County's governmental activities are not due
and payable in the current period and, accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities.
Interest on long-term debt is not acerued in governmental fimds, but rather is
recognized as an expenditire when due, Al liabilities (current and long-term) are
reported in the statement of net assets. Balances on 12/31/08 are:

Accrued interest on notes
Notes payable
Capital lease payable
Vacation payable
Vested sick leave
Accrued sick
Comp time
Total long-term liabilities

$ (53,281)
(11,965,000)
(2,961)

(582,916)
(187,437)
(337,734)

(20,772)

Debt issue costs are recorded as expenditures in the current period in governmental funds, Debt
issue costs are recorded as umamortized debt issue costs on the statement of net assets and are
amortized over the life of the bond. Unamortized debt issue costs on 12/31/08 are:

Accounts receivable are recorded when they become measurable and available in governmental
funds. On 12/31/08 correction receivables were not avaitable and consequently not recorded.
Under full accrual accounting, revenues are recorded when earned. Consequently the accounts
teceivable is recorded and revenue recognized.

On 12/31/08 deferred revenue was recorded in the governmental funds for citation revenue
and loan receivable that was not considered a cnrrent financial resource, but is an
economic resource. Consequently, this revenue is recognized.

Citation revenue
Interest on delinquent taxes
Loans receivable

Total deferred revenne

‘Total net assets of governmental activities *

$ 396,822
60,940
445226

These financial statements should be read only in cmmectlon with
the accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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13,176,888

50,379,595

9,621,436

(13.150,101)

232,676

27474

902,988

b
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LINCOLK COUNTY, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2008
Other Toial
County Roads Socid Developmental Capital G 1 Gover 1
neral and Bridges ervices Disabilities Praject Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes 3 8425858 % 2519645 § 587684 3§ 2,179 3 - 3 1581303 § 13376679
Intergovermmental revenues 2,525,713 1,655,105 3,145,145 4216471 -- 590,112 12,132 556
Licenses and pesmits 115,081 . - - - 34,981 147,062
Fines, forltits, aad penalfies . 262,623 - - - - 57,366 319,989
Public charges for service 873,976 - 275 977,565 - 1,524,601 3,376,417
Intergovemmental charges for service 59,340 - - 41,767 - 331,882 432,989
Miscellaneons revenues 930,609 - 1,905 43 180,145 23,7116 1,138,412
Total revemies 13,193,210 4,174,750 3,735,019 5,498,025 130,145 4,142,955 30924104
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General governrment 4,690,403 - - - - - 4,690,403
Public safety . 6,087,252 - - - - 1,766,583 7,853,835
Public works 45,333 4,142,583 - - - - 4,187,916
Health and human sevices 838,026 - 3,331,905 5,651,046 - 1,580,925 11,451,902
Culture, recreation, and education 814,057 - - - - - £14,057
Congervation and development T95,590 - - - - 70,500 866,09
Capital outlay 1,015,199 - - 33446 11.315,136 108,696 12476477
Debt service:
Principal - - - - - 156,645 156,645
Inderest and other charges ~ - - + - 77240 172401
Total expenditures 14,339,860 4,142,583 3,331,905 5,684,462 11,315,136 4455750 43269726
Exceess {deficiency) of revennes over
{under) expenditores {1,146.656) 32,167 403114 {186.467) {11,134,991) {312,795) (12,345,622}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Proceeds from long-term debt - - - - - 9,965,000 9,965,000
Payment te current notekoider - - - - - {9,965,000) (9,965,000)'
Transfers in 429,121 - - - 94,607 - 298,145 821,873
Transfers out (329,607) - (195,392) - - {84271) (619,270}
Total other financing seurces and uses - 59514 - “ {195,352) - 94,607 203,874 202,603
et change in fund balances (1,047,136) 32,167 . 207722 {186,467) {11,040.384) {108,921) (12,143,019}
i
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 10,887,221 (§10,255) 781,134 236,467 12,396,877 1.128.463 25,319,907 §
FUND BALANCES - ENDING 3 9840085 § {18088 3§ 988856 § se000 0§ 1356403 % 019542 % 13176888 |

These financial statements showld b read osily in congection with
the accompanying notes to basic financial stalements.
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year ended December 31, 2008

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (12,143,019

The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities

is different because: :
Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful lves as depreciation
expense. Additionally, the sale of a capital asset is recorded as a revenue in the governmental
funds. However on the acenial basis, a gain or loss must be recognized. The net changes are as

follows:
Capital outlay $ 12,936,661
Depreciation expense (2,079,979)

Excess of capital outlay over depreciation expense 10,856,682

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term labilities in the statement of net assets. In the current year,
this amount consisted of: 10,129,631

Proceeds from long-term debt is reported as a revenue in govermmental fimds, but the
proceeds increase long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. In the current year,
this amount consisted of; (9,965,000)

Bond issue costs are repotted as expenditures in governmental funds, but are amortized over
the life of the bond issue in the statement of net assets. In the current year this consisted of: 169,054

Internal service funds are used by the County to charge the costs of health insurance
and Counaty road work to individual funds. The net revenue of the internal service funds
is reported with governmental activities as follows:

Healih insurance fond 27,958
Highway fund (16,677
Total internal service funds 11,281

Under the medified accrual basis of accounting used in the governmental funds,
expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not nermaily paid with
expendable available financial resources. In the statement of activities, however,
which is presented on the accrual basis, expenses and Habilities are reported
regardiess of when the financial resources are available. In addition, interest

on long-term debt is not recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting
until due, rather than as it accrues. This adjnstment combines the net changes

of the following balances:
Accrued interest on notes 52,540
Vacation ' (15,941)
Banked sick leave 7,769
Vested sick leave ’ (55,594)
Accrued sick 8,996
Comp time (2,710)
Combined adjustment (5,000)

‘Revenue had accrued on 12/31/08 but was not available. Consequently this revenue

was either deferred or aot accrued in governmental funds, but is recorded as a receivable
on the statement of net assets and recognized as revenue on the statement of activities.
The net revenue consists of:

Notes 12,812
Interest on delinquent taxes . 20,592
Corrections 2,564
Citations o 133514 : :
Combined adjustment 169,482
Change in net assets of governmental activities . C . Lo o % (776,889) -

These financial statements should be read only in connection with -
the accompanying notes o basic financial statements.
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ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables, net:
Property taxes
Acconnts

Daue from other governments

Inventories, af cost

Prepaid items.

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalenis

Capital assets:
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation and depletion

Total capital asscts
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities;

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Compensated absences payable
Accrued claims
Due to other fisnds
Due to other governments
Deforred revenue
Current maturities of long-term dobt
Deposits and advances

Total current liabilitics

Noncurrent Babilities:
Noncurrent maturities of long-term debt
Advance due otber fands
Compensated absences payable
Future closure payable

Toial noncurrent liabilities
Total Habilitics
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricied
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

Thése financial statements should be read oly in connestion with

LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2008
Eaterprise Funds Governmental
Activities - |
PineCrest Solid Waste . Internal |
Nursing Home Landfill Forestry Tetal Service Funds
3 2,389,427 3 2,956,005 $ 2,143,379 5 T488,811 $ 5,320,323
423,140 - - 423,140 -
1,438,093 77.860 69,626 1,585,579 66,833
- 39,998 10,432 50,480 594,359
29,434 236,113 - 265,547 1,012,559
51,4835 1,125 - 52,610 870
4,331,579 3,311,101 2.223.487 9,866,167 6,984,944
16,700 3,139,425 - 3,156,125 -
13,833 84,605 2,502,047 2,600,485 35,540
377,655 06,218,535 9,603 6,605,793 244,869
7,878,964 300,049 276,256 8,455,269 1,853,669
1,343,040 874,042 577,303 2,794,985 10,208,010
(5,302,416} {5,255,015) (635.619) {11,193,050) (7,226,230)
4,311,076 2,222 816 2,729,590 9,263,482 5,115,858
4,327,776 5362241 2,729,590 12,419,607 5,115,858
8,659,355 8,673,342 4,953,077 22,285,774 12,200,802
207,399 69,926 7,320 284,645 460,287
331,141 11,207 24,427 366,775 142 405
262,923 17,055 37,030 317,008 179,793
- - - - 857,779
- - - - 56,195
- - 169,229 169,229 -
423,140 - - 423,140 50,036
350,000 - - 350,000 57,001
51,302 - 81,371 133,173 -
1,626,405 93,188 319377 -2!043,970 1,803,496
2,505,051 - - 2,505,051 56,999
- - - - 401,626
- 17,249 54,089 71,338 217,245
- 2,669,927 - 2,669,927 -
2,505,051 2,687,176 54,089 5,246,316 675,870
4,131,456 2,785,364 373,466 7,200,286 .2.479,366
1456,025 2,222 816 2,729,590 6,408,431 5,001,858
16,700 . 469,498 63,749 554,947 -
3,055,174 3,195,664 1,781,272 8,032,110 4,619,578
3 4,527,899 3 5,887,978 $ 4,579,611 $ 14995438 3 9,621,436

the accompanying notes fo basic financial statements.
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OPERATING REVENUES
Public charges for service
Interdepanimeental charges for service
Intergovernmental charges for service
Other

Total operating revennes

OPERATING EXPENSES
Claims praid
Nursing services
Other professional services
Generl geryices
Administrative and fiscal services
Provider assessment tax
Provision for bad debis
Fuhue closing costs
Depreciation and amortization

Tatal operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Property taxes

Insurance recoveries

Tnterest incomne

Rental income

Grant revenue

Salvage revenne

Denations

Interest expense

Gain on sale of supplies

Loss on disposal of capital assets
Gain on disposal of capital assets

Total ponoperating revenues (expenses)

Income hefore transfers
Transfer out

Change in net assets

TOTAL NET ASSETS - BEGINNING

TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING

LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN' I
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2008 I
Eaterprise Funds Governmental
Activities -
PineCrest Solid Waste Internal
Nursing Home Landfill Forestry Total Service Funds
$ 10,614,463 b 1,201,239 $ 1,205,093 $ 13,020,795 3 -
- - 1,750 1,750 9,088,077
- 193,361 - 193,361 2,726,651
21,509 10,388 3,000 34,897 38,616
10,635,972 1,404,988 1,209,843 13,250,803 11,853,344 l
- - - - 4,521,373
4,749,864 - - 4,749,864 -
500,665 - - 500,665 -
1,905,750 - TI5,726 001,206 3,582,682 5,990,695
2,969,001 - - 2,969,001 974,887
162,000 - - 162,900 -
104,721 B - 104,721 -
- 257,335 - 257,335 - l
323217 572,577 89,437 085,231 639,059
10,715,218 1,605,638 990,643 13,311,499 12,126,514
(79,246) {200,650) 219,200 (60,696} (273,170} l
510,000 - - 510,000 -
- . - - 25,947
1,916 . 173,523 - 175,439 233,686
- - - - 50
- 10,000 301,423 311,423 9,570
- - - - 7,869
48,650 - - 48,650 - I
(174,844) - - (174,844) -
- - - - 3,282
(10,952) - - {10,952) -
119 - - 119 4,047 l
374,889 183,523 301,423 859,835 284,451
295,643 {17,127) 520,623 799,139 11,281
(63,145) - (139,458) (202,603) - '
232,498 {17,127) 381,165 596,536 11,281
4,295,401 5,905,105 4,198,446 14,398,952 9,616,155 l '
3 4,527,899 3 5,887,978 $ 4,579,611 $ 14,995,488 3 9,621,436 .
..Z i

These financial statements should be read only in connection with

the accompanying notes o basic financial statements.
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CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES
" From patients and third party payers
From other County depariments
From govemnment and other parties for sales
To employees for compensation and fringe benefits
To vendors for goods and servives
Other cash received

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Gragt revenue

Transfer in

Transfer out

Tax levy appropriations

Net cash provided by {used in)
financing activitics

LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPTTAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of capilal 2ssets

Proceeds from sale of assets

Capital Grant

TPrincipal payments oa long-term debt
Intexest paid on long-term debt

Net cash ssed in capital and refated Enancing activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest recsived

INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND» CASH EQUIVALENTS,
END OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CONSIST OF:
Unrestricted
Restricted

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2008
Eaterprise Fands Governmental
Activities -
PineCrest Solid Waste Intermal
Narsing Home Landfill Fores Total Service Fuuds
1 10,564,094 s 1,236,084 - $ 11,800,178 5 -
- 721 1750 24N 9,091,668
- 179,066 1,206,578 1,385,644 2,861,399
{1,563,900) 272,359 (514,544) (8,450,803) (3,073,371}
(2,638,582) (471,631} {265,064) (3425.217) (8,386,037}
21,689 - 3,000 24689 -
333,301 671,881 331,720 1,336,902 495,659
- - 250,940 290,940 -
{63,145) - {139,458} (202,603) -
519,000 - - 310,000 -
446,855 - 151,482 598337 -
(548,511 (38,346) - {586,857} (249,227
{10,833) - - {10,833} 81,628
- - - - 480
{330,300} - - {330,000} 13,799
{167,745) - - (167,745} 26,435
(1,057,089) 38,346 - (1,095435) (126,885
1916 169,686 - 11,602 248,596
275,017) 803,221 483,202 1,011,406 617,370
2,681,144 5,292,209 1,660,177 5,633,530 4,702,953
s 2,406,127 3 6,095,430 2,143,379 5 10,644,936 3 5,320,323
b 2,389,427 5 2,956,005 2,143,3?9 1 7,488,811 $ 5,520,323
16,700 3,139,425 - 3,156,125 -
3 2406127 3 6,095,430 2,143,379 $ 10,644.936 $ 5,320323
73
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year £nded December 31, 2008
Enterprise Funds Gover fal
Aclivities -
PineCrest Selid Waste Intermal
Nursing Home Land6i Fores Total Service Fands
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (L0OSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Opexating income {loss) 3 179246) § (200,650 % 219200 % 60,696y § 273,170)
Adj o ile opevating income (loss} to net cash
provided by opesating activities:
Provision for bad debts 104,721 - - 104,721 -
Depreciation 2nd amortizaiion 323,217 572,517 82,437 985,231 635,059
Future closing costs - 257,335 - 257,335 -
Change in assets and Habilitics:
Accounts receivable 36,491 24,457 1,485 62,433 31,378
Due from other governments - {17.574) - (17,574) 15,617
Inventorics {2,284) - - (2,289) {71,896}
Prepaid iteras 3,914 {75} - 3839 (295}
Accounts payable {5.655) 37913 424 32682 4675
BPue to other governments - - 37,150 7150 {179,723)
Accred expenses 30,565 1,947 5321 37833 14,790
Deferred revenue {86,860} - - {86,860) 38,611
Compensated absences payable - (4,649) 2,669 {1,380) © 49,197
Dieposits and advances 8438 - {23,966) (15,528) -
Claims paid - - - - 156,916
Total adjustments 412,547 872,531 112,520 1,397,568 768,829
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 333,301 $ 671,881 $ 331,720 % 1336502 § 495,659

These financial statements should be read only in connection with
the accompanying notes to basic financial statements.




LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
Pecember 31, 2008
Agency Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,126
Accounts receivable 805,669
Total assets _ $ 828,795
LIABILITIES
Deposits and advances 16,721
Due other governments ' 805,669
Due to Lincoln County 6,405
Total liabilities $ 828,795

" These financial statements should be read only in connection with
¢ the accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Lincoln County, Wisconsin, have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The significant accounting principles and policies utilized by the County are described
below:

REPORTING ENTITY

Lincoln County was incorporated under the laws of the State of Wisconsin and is governed by an elected
22-member board. The County provides a full range of services, including public safety, public works,
health and human services, conservation, culture, recreation, education, and general administrative services.
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the County
government and all associated departments. The County has evaluated the following criteria in defining the
reporting entity: :

—  Selection of government authority

—  Designation of management

— Ability to significantly influence operations
— Accountability for fiscal matters

—  Scope of public service

- Financial relationships

Based on these criteria, no additional component units were determined to be reportable.
GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-Wide Financial Stateients

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the reporting
government as a whole except for fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are reported only in the statement of
fiduciary net assets. The statements of net assets and activities distinguish between governmental and
business-type activitics. Governmental activities are generally financed through taxes, intergovernmental
revenues, and other nonexchange revenues. Business-type activities are primarily financed by fees charged
to extemnal partics for goods or services.

The statement of activitics demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are
offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function.
The County does not allocate indirect expenses to functions in the statement of activities. Program revenues
include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods or services
provided by a specific function, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational
or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not included among program
revenues are reported as general revenues.
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements

Financial statements of the County are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a
separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses,
as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the
purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

Funds are organized as major funds or non-major funds within the governmental and proprietary statements.
A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the County or meets the following criteria:

e Total assets, liabilitics, revenues, or expenditure/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise
fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category type, and

e The same element of the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund that met the 10 percent test is
at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined.

e In addition, any other governmental or proprictary fund that the County believes is particularly
important to the financial statement users may be reported as a major fund.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. 1t is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

County Roads and Bridges Fund - Accounts for State transportation aid received by the County and all
maintenance and construction for highways and bridges provided by the Highway Department to the
County.

Social Services Fund - Evaluates eligibility for and administers a variety of social service and financial
support programs (Federal, State, and local) to persons within the County and makes appropriate referrals to
other service providers. These services are provided to meet the basic economic needs of dependent
persons, alleviate dependency, enhance family functioning, assess/provide services to children and adults in
need of protection, and to coordinate supportive care of elderly and disabled persons.

Developmental Disabilities Fund - Administers and accounts for a varicty of Federal, State, and local
programs for developmentally disabled individuals to promote health, welfare, and quality of life.

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:
Pine Crest Nursing Home Fund - Provides a full range of nursing care in a residential facility.
* Solid Waste Landfill Fund - Provides Lincoln County residents, businesses, and institutions with a solid

waste disposal facility, a recycling drop-off facility, construction and demolition site, clean wood/brush
disposal arca, and fuel contaminated soil treatment capabilitics.

Forestry Fund - Manages the natural resources of the County Forest on a sustainable basis, accounts for -
timber sales, administers trail maintenance aid programs, and provides and maintains recreational -

opportunities, including parks, within the County.
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
In addition, the County reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds account for financing of goods and services provided by one
department to other depariments of the County or to other governmental units on a cost-reimbursement
basis.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent
on behalf of others. '

MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT |

PRESENTATION

Government-Wide Financial Statemenis

The government-wide staternent of net assets and statement of activities are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the lLiability is incurred or economic
asset is used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Taxes receivable for the following year are recorded as
receivables and deferred revenue. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

The business-type activities have elected to follow all pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. The business-type activities follow Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statements and Interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, Accounting Principles Board
Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins, unless those pronouncements conflict with GASB
pronouncements. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements. IHowever, the activity from interfund services provided and used
between functions is not eliminated in the statement of activities. To do so would misstate both the
expenses of the purchasing function and the program revenues of the selling function.

Fund Financial Statements

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.
Governmental funds are presented using the flow of current financial resources measurement focus. This
means that only current assets and current labilities are generally included on their balance sheets. With
this measurement focus, revenues are recognized when they become susceptible to accrual or when
measurable and available. Those revenues susceptible to modified accrual are as follows:

e Property tax collections made during the vear;

s Sales tax collected and held by the State of Wisconsin at year-end on behalf of the County;
e  Other revenues receivable at year-end if actually collected during the first thirty days after year-end.
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

State general and categorical aids and other entitlements are recognized as revenue at the time of receipt or
earlier if the “susceptible to accrual” criteria are met. Expenditure-driven programs currently reimbursable
are recognized as revenue when the gualifying expenditures have been incurred. Aids received prior to
meeting revenue recognition criteria are recorded as deferred revenue.

Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund
liability is incurred. Employee services and payroll-related costs (employee health, life, disability insurance,
FICA, Wisconsin Retirement System contributions, annuities) other than compensated absences,
termination, and other post-employment benefits are recognized in the fiscal period when incurred. The
cost of capital items is recorded as an expenditure when acquired. Interest cost on temporary borrowing is
recognized as an expenditure of the fiscal period incurred.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Their revenues are recognized when they are ecarned, and their expenses are
recognized when a liability is incurred regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues for
the County’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for
enterprisc funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

PROPERTY TAXES

- Property taxes are levied prior to December 31 and are due and collectible in the following year. The
2008 tax levy is recorded as receivable with offsetting deferred revenue at December 31, 2008; it will be
recognized as revenue in 2009 when used to finance the County’s services.

The County is responsible to coliect the second installment of current property taxes and all delinquent
property taxes levied by local taxing districts within its boundaries, except delinquent personal property
taxes which may either be turned over to the County for collection or retained by the local municipal
district. Delinquent taxes returned to the County for collection are accounted for in the general fund. As
provided in Wisconsin Statutes, the County has purchased the equity in delinquent property taxes from
all taxing districts, including the state. These purchased taxes are recorded as tax certificates and deeds
and reserved fimd balance of the County’s general fund.
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The property tax calendar for the 2008 tax roll follows:

Lien date and date levy December 2008
Tax bills mailed December 2008
Real estate taxes first installment due January 31, 2009
Personal property taxes due in full January 31, 2009
Real estate taxes second installment due July 31, 2009
Tax sale - 2008 delinquent real estate taxes October 2012

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents are combined in the financial statements. Cash deposits consist of demand
and time deposits with financial institutions and are carried at cost. Cash equivalents are stated at fair
value. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties other than in a forced or liquidation sale. For purposes of the
statement of cash flows, all cash deposits and highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months
or less (including restricted assets} are considered to be cash equivalents.

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The current portion of lending/borrowing arrangements between funds is identified as “due to/from other
funds”. The non-current portion of outstanding balances between funds is reported as “advances to/from
other funds™. Advances between funds are offset by a fund balance reserve account to indicate that they are
not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are recorded at cost, which approximates market, using the moving average cost basis.
Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an expenditure
or as an expense at the time individual inventory items are consumed rather than when purchased.
PREPAID ITEMS

Payments made to vendors that will benefit periods beyond the end of the current calendar year are recorded

as prepaid items. Prepaid items of governmental fund types are offset by fund balance reserve accoumts to
indicate that they do not represent available spendable financial resources.
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are recorded at cost, when available, or estimated historical cost, when historical records
could not be obtained. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated.
The County capitalizes all land and work in progress as well as assets with an initial cost of more than the
following:

Type of Asset Amount

Land improvements $ 25,000
Infrastructure (per subsystem) 250,000
Buildings and improvements 50,000
Equipment and vehicles 2,000-5,000
Intangible assets 5,000

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the statement of
activities. Accumulated depreciation is reported on the statement of net assets. Depreciation has been
charged over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Governmental | Business-type
Activities Activities
Years

Assets A

Land improvements 25 25
Buildings 10-25 10-25
Improvements other than buildings 10-25 10-25
Machinery and equipment 3-15 ) 3-15
Infrastructure 10-50 0

Capital assets used in the governmental funds type operations are accounted for as capital outlay
expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund
operations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements.

DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenues arise when a potential revenue does not meet both the “measurable” and “available”
criteria for recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when the County receives
resources before it has a legal claim to them as when grant monies are received prior fo the incurrence of
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the
County has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the balance
sheet and the revenue is recognized.




" LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIKES (Continued)

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The County records compensated absences pursuant to GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for
Compensated Absences. All vested vacation and sick leave pay is accrued when incurred in the
government-wide financial statements.

In governmental funds, compensated absences (unpaid vacation and sick leave) for governmental fund
employees are recorded as expenditures in the year paid, as it is the County’s policy to liquidate any unpaid
vacation or sick leave at year end from future resources rather than currently available expendable
resources. Accordingly, the entire unpaid liability for compensated absences for the governmental funds is
not recorded in the fund.

Unpaid compensated absences for the proprietary funds are recorded as an expense and a liability in those
funds as the vacation and sick leave benefits accrue to the employees.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources is reported as liabilities in
the government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily of bonds and notes payable.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as a liability in the fund financial statements. The
County records governmental fund long-term debt at face value as an other financing source and payments
of principal and interest are reported as expenditures. Debt discount and issuance costs are recorded as an
expenditure of the fund receiving the proceeds. As required by state statutes, premium and accrued interest
received as part of the proceeds are recorded in the Debt Service Fund, The accounting in proprietary funds
is the same as it is in the government-wide statements.

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Transactions that would be treated as revenues, expenditures, or expenses if they involved organizations
external to the County are similarly treated when involving other funds of the County. Reimbursements
from one fund to another are treated as expenditures or expenses of the reimbursing fund and a reduction of
expenditures or expenses of the reimbursed fund. All interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers.

NET ASSETS

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets (net of
related debt) consist of capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) reduced by the outstanding balance
of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net assets are
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation adopted by the County, or through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE RESERVES

The County reserves those portions of governmental fund balance which are legally segregated for a
specific future use or which do not represent available expendable resources. Fund balance reserves have
been established for prepaid items, deposits, delinquent property taxes, and grants.

BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The County follows these procedures in establishing the annual budget:

County management submits to the County Board a proposed operating budget for the calendar year
commencing the following January 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the
means of financing them. Afier submission to the governing body, public hearings are held to obtain
taxpayer comments. Following the public hearings, the proposed budget, including authorized
additions and deletions, is legally enacted by the County Board action.

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for the
governmental funds, except for the application of the prior year fund balance. Budget is defined as the

originally approved budget plus or minus approved amendments. Individual amendments throughout

the year were not material in relation to the original budget. Budget appropriations not expended
during the year are closed to fund balance unless authorized by the goveming body to be forwarded
into the succeeding year’s budget.

During the year, formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device for the
governmental funds. Expenditures may not exceed appropriations provided in detailed budget accounts
maintained for each funcfional arca of the County. Amendments to the budget during the year require
initial approval by management and are subsequently authorized by the County Board.

Encumbrance accounting 1s not used to record commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods
OF services. - :

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The County maintains various cash and investment accounts, including pooled funds that are available for
use by all funds. Each fund’s portion of these accounts is displayed in the basic financial statements as
“cash and cash equivalents”.

Investment of County funds is restricted by state statutes. Available investments are limited to:

-

Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank, trust company, or savings and loan association.

Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, VI'AE district, village, town, or school district
of the state. ' :
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the Federal government.
The Wisconsin Investment Trust.

Any securiy maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest rating category of
a nationally recognized rating agency.

Repurchase agreements with public depositories, if the agreement is secured by federal bonds or
securities.

Securities of open-end management investment companies or investment trusts (mutual funds) if the
portfolio is limited to (a) bonds and securities issued by the federal government or a commission, board,
or other instrumentality of the federal government, (b) bonds that are guaranteed as to principal and
interest by the federal government or a commission, board or other instrumentality of the federal
government, and (¢} repurchase agreements that are fully collateralized by these bonds or securities.

The carrying amount of the County’s cash and cash equivalents totaled $28,755,045 on December 31, 2008,
as summarized below: :

Petty cash funds 3 2,245
Deposits with financial institutions 12,488,415
Investments
Wisconsin LGIP 8,843,045
Landfill long-term care trust 3,135,425
Health insurance trust fund 4,207,357
Insurance deposits 74,558

$ 28,755,045

Basic financial statements

Cash and investments $ 25,501,236
Restricted cash and investments ' 3,230,683
Fiduciary funds
Cash and investments - 23,126
$ 28755045
Deposits

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the County will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities

that are is the possession of an outside party. The County has a formal policy addressing this type of deposit

risk.
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Deposits with financial institutions are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) in
the amount of $250,000 per official custodian through December 31, 2013. In addition, the County’s non-
interest bearing transaction accounts are fully insured under the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program
through December 31, 2009. On Januvary 1, 2014, the coverage limit for all accounts will return to
$100,000 for interest bearing accounts and $100,000 for non-interest bearing accounts. In addition, the
State of Wisconsin has a State Guarantee Fund which provides a maximum of $400,000 per public
depository above the amount provided by an agency of the U.S. Govermment. However, due to the
relatively small size of the State Guaraniee Fund in relation to the Fund's total coverage, total recovery of
insured losses may not be available.

On December 31, 2008, $10,723,797 of the County’s deposits with financial institutions were in excess of
federal and state depository insurance limits and uncollateralized (or collateralized with securities held by
the pledging financial institution or its trust department or agent but not in the County’s name).

Investments
Custodial Credit Risk for Investments

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty fo a
transaction, the County will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that arc
in the possession of an outside party. The County has a formal policy addressing this type of investment
risk.

The Local Government Investment Pool is part of the Wisconsin State Investment Fund. The Investment
TFund is administered by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board and includes investments made from
the excess cash of the State’s operating funds, the State’ public retirement funds and the voluntary
deposits made by participants of the Local Government Investment Pool.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that, an issuer of other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations
to the County. The County has a formal policy addressing this type of investment risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that, changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. As of December 31, 2008 the County had the following investments and maturities:

Fair
Investment Type Value Average Maturities
U.S. Government Securities $ 7,346,782 1 to 4.25 years
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

Governmental entities including counties, municipalities and school districts may deposit money in the
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), which holds investments in U.S. Government securities,
certificates of deposit, commercial papers, and repurchase agreements. Participants in the fund may
withdraw or add to their account balances at any time. The fair value of this fund may be different from
the accounting basis that is reflected in the monthly statements sent to participants. To franslate
patticipant’s holdings to a fair value amount, a conversion factor must be applied to the County’s account
balance. The State Investment Fund publishes this conversion factor monthly and as of December 31,
2008, the factor was 100%. As of December 31, 2008, the carrying amount of these investments was

$8,843,045. The annualized interest rate on the LGIP was 1.29% for the month of December 2008.

NOTE 3 - RESTRICTED ASSETS
Restricted assets on December 31, 2008, totaled $3,230,683 consisting of cash and investments as follows:

Governmental Activities

Insurance deposits $ 74,558
Business-type Activities :
Solid waste landfill
Long-term care and closure deposits ' 3,139,425
Pine Crest Nursing Home
PDonation and special fund 16,700
Total Restricted Assets : $ _ 3.230.683
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES AND DEFERRED REVENUE

Receivables at year-end for the County’s individual major, nonmajor, and internal service funds in
aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts as follows:

County Develop- Pine Crest
Roads and Social mental Nursing
General Bridges Services Disabilities Home
Receivables
Property taxes $ 7,394,695 $ 2,237,207 $ 446,138 §$ 33,139 § 423,140
Tax certificatos and deeds 1,460,557 - - - -
Assessments 57,181 - - - -
Accounts 535,259 - 2,956 48,200 1,538,003
Due from other governments 533,716 79,731 401,168 982,018 -
Gross receivables 9,981,408 2,316,933 850,262 1,063,357 1,961,233
Less: Allowance for uncollectibles - - - - {100,000)
Net Total Fund Receivables $ 9981408 $ 2316938 $§ 850262 § 1063357 $§ 1861233
Sokid Nonmajor
Waste and Internal
Landfill Forestry Service Funds Total
Receivables (Continued)
Property taxes $ - $ - $ 1,603,182 § 12,137,501
Tax certificates and deeds - - - 1,460,557
Assessments - - - 57,181
Accounis 77,860 69,626 458,017 2,730,011
Loans - - 445,226 445,226
Due from other governments 39,998 10,482 674,617 2,721,730
Gross receivables 117,858 80,108 3,181,042 19,552,206
Less: Allowance for uncollectibles - - (54,217) (154,217)
Net Total Fund Receivables $ 117858 $ 80,108 $ 3126825 $ 19,397,989
Correction receivable 27474
Fiduciary Fund 6,405
Net statement of net assets receivable $ 19.431,868

Delinquent property taxes of the general fund represent unpaid property taxes on real estate, including state
and local government equities therein. Under state statutes, the County annually reimburses the state and
local governments for their equities in property taxes not collected from the property owner. Unless
redeemed by the property owner, the County will eventually obtain tax deed ownership of the properties
comprising delinquent taxes. In the past, the County has generally been able to recover its investment in
delinquent taxes by sale of the tax-deeded properties.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES AND DEFERRED REVENUE (Continued)

On December 31, 2008, the County’s general fund showed an investment of $1,460,557 in delinquent taxes
as follows:

Tax certificates _ $ 1,438,674
Tax deeds 21,883
Total delinquent certificates and deeds $ 1460557
An aging of the delinquent tax certificates of $1,438,674 on December 31, 2008, follows:
Year Tax
Acquired Certificates
Priorto 2004 § 11,560
2004 1,929
2005 19,823 |
2006 59,103
2007 391,501
2008 954,758
§ 1.438.674

Of the total of $1,438,674 for delinquent tax certificate taxes, $373,652 was collected by the County within
90 days after December 31, 2008. The remaining unpaid balance of $1,065,022 and tax deeds of $21,883
are recorded as reserved fund balance of $1,086,905 for the general fund.

The County reports deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to
be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. The County also defers revenue recognition in
connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year,
the various components of deferred revenue reported in the statement of net assets were as follows:

[ Unavailable | Uneamed | = Total !
Governmental Funds :
Subsequent year tax levy receivable
General fund $ - $ 7394695 $ 7,394,695
Special revenue funds
County roads and bridges - 2,237,207 2,237,207
Social services - 446,138 446,138
Developmental disabilities - 33,139 33,139
County health _ - 562,943 562,943
Commission on aging - 103,690 103,690
Emergency medical - 552,896 552,896 |
Debt service fund - 383,653 383,653 |
Loans Receivable |
Commumity development 445,226 - . 445226
Other
General fund 457,762 20,055 477,817
Special revenue funds
Developmental disabilities - 960,700 960,700
Emergency medical - 36,400 36,400
Subtotal 902,988 12,731,516 13,634,504
Internal Service Fund ‘
Highway department : - 50,036 50,036
Total deferred/unearned revenue 902,988 12,781,552 13.684 540
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

At December 31, 2008, interfund receivables and payables were as follows:

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
Temporary Cash Advances to Finance Operating Cash
Deficits of Other Funds
General Fund $ 164,224 § -
Special Revenue Fund
County Roads and Bridges - 157,819
Fiduciary Fund
Employee Benefit Cafeteria Plan - 6,405
Current Portion of Interfund Advance
General Fund 56,195 -
Internal Service Fund - Highway - 56,195
Subtotal 220,419 220,419
Long-term Portion of Interfund Advance
General Fund 401,626 -
Internal Service Fund - Highway - 401,626
Totals i 622,045 % 622,045

The General Fund's receivable from other funds represents $157,819 from the County Roads and Bridges
Fund and $6,405 from the Employee Benefit Cafeteria Plan Fiduciary Fund for operational cash flow
purposes. For the statement of net assets, the $6,405 due from the Employee Benefit Cafeteria Plan
Fiduciary Fund is included with accounts receivable.

Additionally, the County’s General Fund advanced the Highway Internal Service Fund $457,821 as of
December 31, 2008 for facility updates. Annual principal and inferest maturities on the interfund
advance follows:

[Year Ending December 31, {  Amount |
2009 $ 56,195
2010 56,195
2011 56,195
2012 56,195
2013 _ 56,195
2014 56,195
2015 - 2017 120,651

$ 457.821




LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS (Continued)

Transfers were made in the primary government as follows:

Transfer to:
General Capital Debt
Fund Project Service Totals

Transfers from:

(General Fund ' $ - $ 94607 $ 235000 $ 329,607

Social Services 195,392 - - 195,392

Emergency Medical 38,139 - - 38,139

Jail Assessment 21,609 - - 21,609

County Health 34,523 - - 34,523

Forestry 139,458 - - 139,458

Pine Crest Nursing Home - - 63,145 63,145

Total $ 429121 § 94607 $§ 298,145 821,873
Elimination of interfund activity from governmental activities (619,270)
Transfers to offset internal service fund allocations {74,633)
Interfund activity adjustment for retirement charges 7,504
Transfers per Statement of Activities $ 135474

Interfund transfers from various funds to the General Fund are primarily performed to comply with
Chapter 3.07 Lincoln County Code limiting fund balances. Transfers in to other funds were performed to
pay debt out of the Debt Service Fund from Pine Crest Nursing Home, to apply designated capital

improvement funds from the General Fund to the Capital Project Fund.

Certain adjustments were made in preparing the County’s government-wide financial statcments, as

detailed above. These adjustments were prepared to adjust the cost of internal service fund and other .

charges from an expense to a transfer in the County’s business-type activities.
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Changes in capital assets were as follows:

Governmental activities;
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Counstruction in progress
Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Intangible assets
Subtotals

Less accumulated depreciation for:
1and improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Intangible assets
Subtotals

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net
Less related long-term debt outstanding

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

December 31, 2008

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$ 206,075 % - - $ 206,075
3,696,953 12,517,204 5,358,107 10,656,050
3,903,028 12,517,204 5,558,107 10,862,125
334,139 122,166 - 456,305
11,571,447 5,780,225 50,904 17,300,768
13,585,203 717,480 1,203,666 13,099,017
49,477,557 - - 49,477,557
97,275 10,420 - 107,695
75,065,621 6,630,291 1,254,570 80,441,342
91,865 11,244 - 103,109
7,783,415 426,688 48,858 8,161,245
7,779,679 041,246 862,811 7,857,514
18,249,011 1,336,097 - 19,585,108
97,275 3,763 - 101,038
34,000,645 2,719,038 911,669 35,808,014
41,064,976 3,911,253 342,901 44,633,328
3 44.968.004 16428.457 _$ 5.901,008 55,495,453
10,081,963

3 45413490
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2008

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Changes in capital assets were as follows:

Business-type activities:
Capital assets, not being dopreciated:

Land $ 2,600485 % - b - $ 2,600,485
Construction in progress 79,846 - 79,846 -
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 2,680,331 - 79,846 2,600,485
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Land improvements 6,573,272 32,521 - 6,605,793
Buildings 7,919,913 555,356 20,0600 8,455,269
Machinery and equipment 2,686,192 138,461 29,668 2,794,985
Subtotals 17,179,377 726,338 49,668 17,856,047
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improvements 4,064,346 524,899 - 4,589,245
Buildings 4,343,882 249,290 +20,000 4,573,172
Machinery and equipment 1,849,945 199,371 18,683 2,030,633
Subtotals 10,258,173 973,560 38,683 11,193,050
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 6,921,204 (247,222) 10,985 6,662,997
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 9601535 § (247222) § 90,831 9,263,482
Less related long-term debt ouistanding 2,855,051
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 6408431
Depreciation expense was charged to the functions as follows:
Governmental activities
General government b 310,736
Public safety 319,307
Public works 1,975,156
Health and human services 94,693
Culture, recreation and education 2,499
Conservation and development 16,647
_Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 2710038
Business-type activities
Nursing Home $ 311,546
Forestry 89,437
Solid Waste Landfill 572,577
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 973.560 -

Beginning
Balance

Eanding
Increases Decreases Balance
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NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued))

The County has active construction projects as of December 31, 2008. The projects include street
construction in areas with newly developed housing and the widening and construction of existing streets
and bridges. At year-end, the government’s commitments with contractors are as follows:

Spent Remaining
to Date Commitment
Residential street construction $ 1,560,839 § 81,697
Bridge and approach expansion 1,894,274 473,907
Building projects 12,951,647 3,340,361

$ 16406760 $ 3.895.965

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

All general obligations bonds are backed by the full faith and credit of the County. The County’s, general
long-term obligations are as follows:

Outstanding Outstanding | Due Within
1/1/08 Issued Retired 12/31/08 One Year

Governmental activities:
General Obligation Debt

Bonds $ 2,125000 $ 9965000 $ 125,000 $ 11,965000 § 130,000

Notes 9,996,645 - 9,996,645 - -

Total General Obligation Debt 12,121,645 9,965,000 10,121,645 11,965,000 130,000
Capital lease 10,947 117,600 10,984 116,963 57,497
Compensated absences 1419157 1,011,930 905,192 1,525,895 783,481
Governmental. activities

Long-term obligations $ 13,551,749 $11.093930 $ 11037821 % 13607858 § 970978
Business-type activities:
General obligation debt

bonds $ 3,180,000 $ - $ 330,000 § 2,850,000 $ 350,000
Unamortized refunding loss (15,134} - {20,185) - 5,051 -
Compensated absences 415,352 366,713 393,719 388,346 317,008
Business-type activities

Long-term obligations $§ 3580218 § 366713 $§ 703534 § 3243397 § 667.008

Tnterest paid for the year ended December 31, 2008 totaled $520,820.
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PDecember 31, 20608

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
Detail of the above outstanding general obligations debt follows:
Bonds

© $5,310,000 General Obligation Bonds issued 04/01/00; $350,000 to $365,000 due  § 715,000
annually through 2010; interest 4.2% to 4.5% '

$2,400,000 General Obligation Bonds issued 03/15/04; $130,000 to $215,000 due 2,000,000
annually through 2020; interest 2.2% to 5.23%
$2,145,000 General Obligation Bonds issued 07/15/05; $385,000 to $445,000 due 2,135,000

annually from 2011 through 2015; interest 3.45% to 3.7%
$9,965,000 General Obligation Bonds issued 11/15/08; $55,000 to $1,175,000 due

annually from 2010 through 2028; interest 4% fo 4.65% 9,965,000
Total General Obligation Debt $ 14815000

Annual principal and interest maturities of the outstanding general obligation debt on December 31, 2008,

are allocated to activities as detailed below:

Year Ended Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
December 31 Principal | Interest Principal Interest Principal | Interest
2009 $ 130,000 $ 482,111 $ 350,000 $ 150,752 § 480,000 $ 632,863
2010 345,000 526,663 365,000 132,552 710,000 659,215
2011 395,000 511,814 385,000 113,388 780,000 625,202
2012 450,000 494,440 410,000 89,326 860,000 583,766
2013 500,000 474,568 435,000 63,701 935,000 538,269
2014-2018 935,000 2,209,230 905,000 53,770 1,840,000 2,263,000
20192023 4,060,600 1,625,117 - - 4,060,000 1,625,117
2024-2028 5,150,000 622,149 - 5,150,000 622,149

$11.965000 $ 6.946,092 § 2850, 000 $ 603489 $14.815000 §7.549, 581

Pursuant to Section 67.03 Wisconsin Statutes, the total indebtedness of the County for general purposes

may not exceed 5% of the value of the taxable property located therein for state purposes.

Equalized valuation of the County $ 2,410,005,500
Statntory limitation percentage {x) 5%
General obligation debt limitation, per Section 67.03 of the

Wisconsin Statutes 120,500,275
Total outstanding general obligation debt applicable to debt limitation 3 14,815,000
Less: Amounts available for financing general obligation debt

Debt service fund (65,765)

Net outstanding general obligation debt applicable to debt limit 14,749,235
Legal Margin for New Debt ' $ 105,751,040
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

The County has entered into a lease agreement as lessee for financing the acquisition of a postage machine
and two graders. These lease agreements qualify as a capital lease for accounting purposes and, therefore,
has been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception date.

The assets acquired through a capital lease are recorded in the governmental activities accounts with an
original cost of $114,000.

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of
December 31, 2008, were as follows: '

| Year Ending I Amount |
2609 $ 57,755
2010 57,757
2011 756
2012 . 756
2013 693
Total Minimum Lease Payments 117,717 .
Less: Amount representing interest (754)
Present Value of Future Minimum Lease Payments $§ 116963

Other long-term debt consists of compensated absences. Compensated absence expenses follow employee
payroll expenses, which are expensed to the appropriate funds as incurred.

NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN

All eligible Lincoln County employees participate in the Wisconsin Retirement System (System), a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit public employee retirement system (PERS). All permanent
employees expected to work over 600 hours a year are eligible to participate in the WRS. Covered
employees in the General category are required by statute to contribute 6.0 percent of their salary (3.0
percent for Executive and Elected Officials, 5.1 percent for Protective Occupations with Social Security,
and 3.4 percent for Protective Occupations without Social Security) to the plan. Employers may make
these contributions to the plan on behalf of employees. Employers are required to contribute an
actuarially determined amount necessary to fund the remaining projected cost of future benefits.

The payroll for Lincoln County employess covered by the System for the year ended December 31, 2008,
was $15,531,489; the employer’s total payroll was $16,164,434. The total required contribution for the year
ended December 31, 2008, was $1,694,218, which consisted of $783,987 or 5.0 percent of payroll from the
employer and $910,231, or 5.6 percent of payroll from employees. Total contributions for years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, were $1,631,614 and $1,526,790, respectively, equal to the required
contributions for ecach year.

Employees who retire at or after the age 65 (62 for elected officials and 54 for protective occupation
employees with less than 25 years of service, 53 for protective occupation employees with more than 25
years of service) are entitled to receive a retirement benefit. Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for
protective occupation employees) and receive actuarially reduced benefits. The factors influencing the
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NOTE 8 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued)

benefit are; (1) final average carnings, (2) years of credible service, and (3) a formula factor. Final
average earnings is the average of the employee’s three highest years earnings. Employees terminating

covered employment before becoming eligible for retirement benefit may withdraw their contributions.

and, by doing so, forfeit all rights to any subsequent benefit. For employees beginning participation on
or after January 1, 1990, and no longer actively employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable service in
each of five years is required for eligibility for a retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to 1990
and on or after April 24, 1998, are immediately vested.

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees. Eligibility for and the amount of all
benefits is determined under Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The WRS issues an annual financial

report, which may be obtained by writing to the Department of Employee Trust Funds, P.O. Box 7931,
Madison, Wisconsin 53707-7931.

NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT

Health Insurance

The County is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts, theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets;
errors or omissions; injuries to employees; natural disasters, and employee health claims.

The County also operates a self-insurance program administered by a third party administrator for employee
health care benefits. The program is supplemented by stop loss protection, which limits the County’s
liability to $90,000 per individual claim or an aggregate limit of $5,661,829 during the period of Ianuary 1,
2008 to December 31, 2008.

The provision for current year claims includes paid and unpaid claims and expenses associated with settling
claims, including legal fees. The claims liability at year-end is based on claims, adjusters’ evaluations of
individual claims, and management’s evaluation with respect to the probable number and nature of claims
arising from losses that have been incurred, but have not yet been reported. The liability represents the
estimated ultimate cost of settling the claims, including the effects of inflation and other socictal economic
factors. Any adjustments resulting from the settlement of losses will be reflected in earnings at the time the
adjustments are determined.

An analysis of claim activities is presented below:

Current Year-
Claims and
Liability Changes in Claim Liability
January 1 . Estimates Payments December 31
2008 $ 941,435 $ 4,516,282 § 4,366,174 § 1,091,543
2007 913,806 3,793,367 3,765,738 941,435

Claims liability at December 31, 2008 conmsts of $233,764 included in accounts payable and $857 779 S
included as claims payable.




LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
" Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2008

NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Liability Insurance

Lincoln County participates with other counties in the Wisconsin County Mutual Insurance Corporation.
This joint venture began operation January 1, 1988, and provides liability insurance coverage to the
counties. The creation of the mutual insurance corporation required the establishment of capital reserves.
Each participating county deposited a portion of the required reserves. Lincoln County’s share of the capital
reserves is $74,558. These deposits have been reported in the financial statements as restricted deposits.

The governing body of the mutual insurance corporation is made up of twelve directors elected by the
participating counties. The governing body has authority to adopt-its own budget and control the financial
affairs of the corporation. Financial information as of and for the year ended December 31, 2008, is not
available for presentation.

NOTE 10 - TRI-COUNTY HUMAN SERVICES BOARD

Lincoln County is a participating member of a Tri-County Human Services Board along with Marathon and
Langlade Countics. The Board is funded through State grant-in-aid, federal grants, fees for services
rendered, and County appropriations. The net appropriation for 2008 was $10,845,506 with Lincoln
County’s share totaling $534,736 (4.9%). Operations of the Tri-County Human Services Board are not
reflected in the financial statements of Lincoln County.

The following audited summary financial information for North Central Health Care Tri-County facilities is
as of December 31, 2008, and for the year then ended.

Assets $ 25,031,435
Liabilitics 6,986,353
Equity 18,045,082
Revenues 68,089,470
Expenscs 68,190,738
Non-operating gain 277,948
Change in net assets 176,680

Lincoln County’s share of net assets for the year ended December 31, 2008 is $1,101,806.

Audited financial statements of the North Central Health Care Tri-County facilities are available at _its

administrative office at 1100 Lake Shore Drive, Waunsau, Wisconsin 54401,
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NOTE 11 - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS

State and federal laws and regulations require that Lincoln County place a final cover on its landfill when
closed and perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landfill sites only for forty years
after closure. In addition to operating expenses related to current activities of the landfill, an expense
provision and related lability are being recognized based on the future closure and postclosure care costs
that will be incurred near or after the date the landfifl no longer accepts waste. The recognition of these
landfill closure and postclosure care costs is based on the amount of the landfill used during the year. At
December 31, 2008, the County has utilized approximately 62.1% of its landfill’s capacity, a net increase of
11.1% compared to December 31, 2007. The landfill is estimated to be fully utilized in 2016.

The estimated liability for landfill closure and postclosure care costs and total future estimated costs as of
December 31, 2008, is as follows:

Total estimated cost for construction, closure, and postclosure care $ 4,299,743
Estimated costs expensed through December 31, 2008 (2,669,927)
Estimated costs of construction, closure, and postclosure care to

be recognized in fiture years $ 1.629.816

The estimated total current cost of the landfill construction, closure, and postclosure care of $4,299,743 is
based on the amount that would be paid if all equipment, facilities, and services required to close, monitor,
and maintain the landfill were acquired as of December 31, 2008. However, the actual cost of closure and
postclosure care may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes in landfill laws and
regulations. With respect to the sanitary landfill, Lincoln County is required by state and federal laws and
regulations to make annual contributions to finance closure and postclosure care. The County is in
compliance with these requirements, and at December 31, 2008, investments of $3,139,425 are held for
these purposes. These investments are held and managed by the County and are presented on the County’s
statement of net assets as “Restricted Assets”. It is anticipated that future inflation costs will be financed in
part from earnings on investments. The remaining portion of anticipated future inflation costs (including
inadequate earnings on investments, if any) and additional costs that might arise from changes in
postclosure requirements {due to changes in technology or more rigorous environmental regulations, for
example) may need to be covered by charges to firture landfill users, taxpayers, or both.

NOTE 12 - CONTINGENCIES
The County is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently

determinable, it is the opinion of management and the Corporation Counsel that the resolution of these
matters will not have a material adverse affect on the financial condition of the County.
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NOTE 13 - FUND EQUITY

Unreserved - designated fund balances
Unreserved fund balances were designated to show the portion segregated from the unreserved spendable
(undesignated) resources as follows:

General Fund
Designated as carryover in 2009 budget:
Phone system $ 77,793
Rural addressing 460
Veterans fuel assistance 2,000
Zoning - comprehensive plan update 7,405
Zoning - operational 7,300
UW pest application 1,063
UW LLC program revemie 1,786
UW resource directory ' 62
Cash flow purposes 5,735,944
Designated for capital improvement in 2009 budget
Parcel mapping 25,000
Digital elevation data 109,556
Highway road work 250,000
Election equipment 163,910
Digital voice recorder 50,000
Designated for capital improvements in fitture years 1,309,791
$ 7742070
Restricted net assets
Restricted net assets are reported in the Statement of Net Assets as follows:
Governmental Activities
Insurance deposits $ 74,558
Grand and program fees 519,031
Jail assessments 28,466
Community development 512,379
Total Governmental Activities 1,134,434
Business-type Activities
Landfill closure 469,498
Nursing home funds 16,700
Forestry grants 68,749
Total Business-type Activities 554,947
Total Restricted Net Assets $ 1,689,381
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REVENUES

Taxes
General property
Farest crop
Managed forest land
County sales tax
Reat estate transfer fees
Interest on taxes
Payment in lieu of taxes

Total taxes

Interpovernmental
State shared revenues
Exempt computer aid
Finance department
County clerk
Clerk of courts
Circuit court
Land information
Sheriff department
Emergency management
Victim witness
Zoning grants.
Veterans service
Family court commissioner
Child support
UW extension
Stafe acreage payment
Land conservation

Total intergovernmental

Licenses and permits
County cletk
Family court commissioner
Land Information
Zoning fees

Total licenses and permits

Fines, forfeits, and penalties
Cletk of courts
Circuit court
District attorney
Sheniff department

Total fines, forfeits, and penalties

LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Year Ended December 31, 2008

REQUIRED SUPPEEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
$ 1,010,876 § 6,455,531 6,455,531 § -
18,000 18,000 12,109 (5391
40,000 40,600 46,560 6,560
1,524,957 1,524,957 1,564,202 39,245
60,000 60,000 42,961 (17,039
240,000 240,000 225,162 (14,838)
68,000 68,060 79,333 11,333
8,961,833 8,406,438 8425858 19,370
1,322,417 1,322,417 1,249,667 (72,750)
28,000 28,000 26,860 (1,140)
300 300 556 256
- - 3,625 5,625
129,862 39,948 90,289 341
98,023 98,023 77,638 (20,385)
199,400 199,669 277,829 78,160
104,093 142,464 137,718 (4,746)
31,254 48,204 73,990 25,786
30,006 30,006 31,608 1,602
47,000 47,000 47,325 325
10,060 10,000 10,600 -
1,122 1,122 1,724 602
105,055 151,637 228,675 77,038
8,245 11,206 14,255 3,049
71,060 71,600 68,600 (2,400)
213,666 230,641 183,364 (47,277
2,399.443 2,481,637 2,525,723 44,086
5,840 5,562 5424 (138)
3,833 3,833 2,975 (858)
4,950 4,950 4,501 449)
126,192 126,192 102,181 (24,011}
140,815 140,537 115,081 (25,456)
128,000 165,050 260,543 95,493
1,663 1,663 1,377 {286)
15,600 15,000 - {15,000
= 407 703 296
144,663 182,120 262,623 80,503
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Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Public charges for service
Clerk of courts $ 68,000 § 78073 §$ 87,582 % 2,509
Circuit coust 11,460 12,767 12,927 160
Family court commissioner 3,672 3,672 2,905 (167
Register of deeds 124,060 120,060 111,259 (8,801)
Land information 42,400 42,400 40,343 2057
County cletk 500 500 86 (414)
Treasurer 500 500 301 {199)
District-atiomey 1,500 1,500 1,430 {70)
Sheriff department 230,350 307,738 250,297 (57.441)
Coroner - 7,989 8,700 711
Maintenance 4,500 4,500 5,400 900
Zoning : 2,160 2,100 1,663 437
Land conservation 425 425 143 {282)
Administration/personnel - - 8 8
Finance 125 125 195 70
Child support 7,900 7,900 6,775 (L125)
UW extension 16,485 12,131 5,220 (6,911)
Forest land revenue 246,384 315,101 338,457 23356
Other charpes for service 700 700 285 (415)
Total public charges for services 751,061 918,181 873,976 (44,205)
Intergovernmental charges for service
Sheriff department 59,500 66,880 44,246 (22,634)
Land information 1,100 1,106 844 (256)
Clerk of courts 1,000 2,636 2,636 -
County cletk 5,800 3,71 7,809 4,018
UW extension 3,500 5,305 3,805 (1,500)
Total intergovernmentaf charges for services 70,900 79,712 59,340 (20,372)
Miscellaneous
Interest 1,088,666 1,088,730 757,352 {331,428)
Rent 128,000 128,000 135,236 1,236
Tax deed profit 5,000 T 5,000 1,215 (3,785)
Sale of county property 47,800 47,800 26,131 21,669)
Misc 395,044 395,044 - {395,044)
Insurance recovery 36,000 30,000 8,432 (21,568)
Private organization donations 1,300 2,925 2,243 {682y
Total miscellancous 1,695,810 1,697,549 930,689 (766,940)
Total revenues 14,164,525 13,966,224 13,193,210 (713,014
52
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND
Year Ended December 31, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
EXPENDITURES
General government
County board chairman $ 55700 § 55,700 3 51,708 % 3,992
Couaty board commitfees 103,500 103,900 91,246 12,654
Clerk of courts 580,516 589475 589,475 -
Circuit court 261,814 263,121 270,970 (7.849)
Family court commissioner 18,673 30,323 33,193 (2,870)
Coroner 46,746 54,735 46,203 8,532
Law library 2,600 2,600 970 1,630
District attomey 183,449 193,244 188,530 4,714
Corporation counset 173,780 173,780 170,072 3,708
Victim witness 57,705 57,705 571,277 428
County clerk 129,632 131,062 131,002 - :
Administration/personnel 219,732 250,308 250,804 4 i
Information technology 641,523 641,523 587,715 53,808 l
General administration 5,552 71,625 70,931 694
Treasurer 141,829 141,829 141,372 457
Finance department 371,833 371,833 367,072 4,761
Maintenance 688,493 688,493 653,636 34,857
Surveyor 207,320 207,320 185,507 21,813
Tax description 102,712 102,712 101,695 1,017
Register of deeds 275,130 275,130 262,655 12,475
Land records 264,979 265,248 211,063 54,185
Tax assessment 69,630 69,630 66,435 3,195
Insurance 84,928 85,440 81,436 4,004
Elections . 62,600 73,811 79436 (5,625)
Contingency fund 887,413 77,379 - 77379
Total general government 5,637,589 4,978,366 4,690,403 287,963
Pubiic safety
Sheriff department:
Law enforcement 2,912,880 3,048,931 3,034,231 14,700
Emergency commmunication (911) 732,947 752,037 752,093 (56)
Correction and deteation 2,002,846 2,196,799 2,187,764 9,035
Emergency management 96,069 113,019 111,032 1,987
Civil service commission - 2,132 2,132 -
Total public safety 5,744,742 6,112 918 6,087,252 25,666
Public wotks
Zoning-sanitation 42,000 42,000 45,333 (3,333)
Health and human services )
Commmaity organizations 20,000 20,000 20,000 -
Health cate center 534,736 534,736 534,736 -
Child support agency 159218 205,800 205,969 (169)
Veterans services 126,145 128,195 126,007 2,188
Cemetery 1,314 1,314 1,314 -
Total health and human services 841,413 890,045 888,026 2,019
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND
Year Ended December 31, 2008

Culture, recreation, and education
Public libraries
UW extension

Tetal culture, recreation, and education

Conservation and development
Economic development
Zoning
Land conservation

- Total conservation and development

Capital outlay
Maintenance
Information Technology
Land vecords
Sheriff

Total capital cutlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)

expenditures

QOther financing sources (uses)
Funds applied
Transfer in
Transfer out

Totat other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCE - ENDING

RECONCILIATION FROM BUDGET TO GAAP:

Net change in fund balance - budget

Fund balance applied is reported as an other
financing source for budget purposes, but fund
balance applied is not reported as an other
financing sowce for GAAP purposes.

Net change in fund balance - GAAP

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

3 554,803 $ 554,803 § 554,356 % {53
278,968 284,599 259.201 25,398
833,771 839,402 814,057 25,345

44,500 44,500 44,500 -
454329 456,022 412,426 43,596
375,499 403.782 338664 65,118
£74,328 504,304 795,590 108,714

20,000 15,966 10,736 5,230

- 614,364 589.409 24,955
411,000 411,000 288,800 122200
150,000 130,254 130.254 -
581,000 1,171,584 1,019,199 152,385
14,554,843 14,938,619 14,339,860 598,759
(390,318) {1,032,395) (1,146,650) (114,255)
358,190 1,075,163 1,075,163 -
32,128 51,839 429,121 377282
- (94,607) (329,607) (235,000)
390,318 1,032,395 1,174,677 142282
- - 28,027 28,027
10,387,221 10,887.221 10,887,221 -
b 10,887221 § 10,887,221 $ 10,915,248 - $ 28,027

$ 28,027
{1,075,163)

3 1,047,136
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - COUNTY ROADS AND BRIDGES
Year Ended December 31, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
General property b 2,193340 $ 2519645 % 2,519645 § -
Intergovernmental 991,592 1,563,318 1,655,105 91,787
Total revenues 3,184,932 4,082,963 4,174,750 91,787
EXPENDITURES
Public works 3,184,932 4,082,963 4,142,583 (59,620)
Deficiency of revenues over (under)
expenditures - - 32,167 32,167
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - BEGINNING {110,255) (110,255) {110,255) -
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT) - ENDING $ 116,341 $ 116341 § (78,088) $ 32,167
|
|
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - SOCIAL SERVICES ¥UND
Year Ended December 31, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
General property 5 587,694 § 587,694 § 587.694 % -
Intergovernmental 2,749,152 2,749,152 3,145,145 395,993
Public charges for service - - 275 275
Miscellancous revenues - - 1,905 1,905
Total revenues 3,336,846 3,336,846 3,735,019 398,173
EXPENDITURES
Health and human services 3,330,846 3,330,846 3,331,905 (1,059
Outlay 6,000 6,000 - 6,000
Total expenditures 3,336,846 3,336,846 3,331,905 4,941
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures - - 403,114 403,114
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer out - - (195,392} (195,392)
Net change in fund balance - - 207,122 207,722
FUND BALANCE - JANUARY 1 781,134 781,134 781,134 -
FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31 $ 781,134 % 781,134 § 988,856 $ 207,722
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES FUND
Year Ended December 31, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative)
REVENUES
General property $ 33,139 § 262,179 $ 262,179 % -
Intergovernmental 4,297,980 4,297,980 4216471 {81,509)
Public charges for service 944,300 944,300 977,565 33,265
Intergovernmental charges for service - - 41,767 41,767
Miscellaneous revenues - - 43 43
Total revenues 5,275,419 5,504,459 5,498,025 (6,434)
EXPENDITURES
Heaith and human services 5,327,431 5,527,841 " 5,651,046 {123,205)
Capital outlay - 28,630 33,446 (4,816)
Total expenditures 5,327.431 5,556,471 5,684,492 (128,021)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures {52,012) {52,012) (186,467} (134,455)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Fund balance applied 52,012 52,012 52,012 -
Net change in fund balance - . - (134,455) (134,455)
FUND BALANCE - JANUARY1 236,467 236,467 236,467 -
FUND BALANCE - DECEMBER 31 $ 236,467 § 236467 § 102,012 § (134.455)

RECONCH.JATION FROM BUDGET TO GAAP:
Net change in fund balance - budget $ (134,455)
Fund balance applied is reported as an other

financing source for budget purposes, buf fund
balance applied is not reported as an other

financing source for GAAP purposes. 52,012
Net change in fund balance - GAAP $ (186,467
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
December 31, 2008

NOTE 1 - EXCESS OF ACTUAL EXPENDITURES OVER FINAL BUDGET

For the year ending December 31, 2008, the legally adopted budget line items with actual expenditures over
the final budget were as follows:

[ Final Budget | Actual |
General Fund
General government
Family court commissioner $ 30,323 § 33,193
Circuit court 263,121 270,970
Elections 73,811 79,436
Public safety
Emergency communication (911) 752,037 752,093
Public works
Zoning-sanitation 42,000 45,333
Health and human services i
Child support agency 205,800 205,969 |
Culture, recreation and education |
Public libraries 554,803 554,856
Other financing sources (uses) , |
Transfer out (94,607) (329,607)
County Roads and Bridges Fund
Public works 4,082,963 4,142,583
Social Services Fund
Health and human services 3,330,846 3,331,905
Developmental Disabilities Fund '
Health and human services 5,527,841 5,651,046
Capital outlay 28,630 33,446

iﬁ
|
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

December 31, 2008

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Inventories, at cost
Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Land
Improvements other than buildings
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets

Total assets

LIABILITTES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Compensated absences payable
Due other finds
Accrued claims
Cumrent maturities of long-term debt
Deferred revenue

Total current habilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Noncurrent maturtities of long-term debt
Advance due other funds
Compensated absences payable

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilitics

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

Internal Service Funds

Health
Highway Ingurance Totai
$ 420,630 $ 4,899,693 $ 5,320,323
14472 52,361 66,833
594,359 - 594,359
1,002,559 - 1,002,559
870 - 870
2,032,890 4,952,054 6,984,944
35,540 - 35,540
244,869 - 244,869
1,853,669 - 1,853,669
10,208,010 - 10,208,010
(7.226,230) - (7,226,230)
5,115,858 - 5,115,858
7,148,748 4,952,054 12,100,802
226,523 233,764 460,287
140,790 1,615 142,405
179,793 - 179,793
56,195 - 56,195
- 857,779 857,779
57,001 - 57,001
50,036 - 50,036
710,338 1,093,158 1,803,496
56,999 - 56,999
401,626 - 401,626
217,245 - 217,245
618,871 - 675,870
1,329,209 1,093,158 2,479,366
5,001,858 - 5,001,858
760,682 3,858,896 4,619,578
$ 5,762,540 $ 3,858,896 3 9,621436
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Year Ended December 31, 2008

Internal Service Funds

Health
Highway Inserance Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Interdepartmental charges for service $ 4,180,879 $ 4,907,198 $ 9,088,077
Intergovernmental charges for service 2,726,651 - 2,726,651
Other operating revenue 38,616 - 38,616
Total operating revenues 6,946,146 4,907,198 11,853,344
OPERATING EXPENSES
Claims paid - 4,521,873 4,521,873
General services 5,990,695 - 5,990,695
Administrative and fiscal services 383,834 591,053 - 974,887
Depreciation and amortization 639,059 - 639,059
Total operating expenses 7,013,588 5,112,926 12,126,514
Operating income (67.442) (205,728) {(273,170)
NONOPERATING REVENUES
Rent revenue 50 - 50
Grant revenue 9,570 - 9,570
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 4,047 - 4,047
Salvage revenue 7,869 - 7,869
Gain on sale of supplies 3,282 - 3,282
Insurance recoveries 25,947 - 25,947
Interest income - 233,686 233,686
‘Total nonoperating revenues 50,765 233,686 284,451
Change in net assets (16,677) 27,958 11,281
TOTAL NET ASSETS - BEGINNING 5,779,217 3,830,938 9,610,155
TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING $ 5762540 $ 3,858.896 $ 9621436

|
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LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN l |
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ‘
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS |
Year Ended December 31, 2008 '
Enternal Service Funds
Health
Highway Insurance Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
From other Couvnty departments $ 4,180,879 $ 4912789 § 9,093,668
From government and other parties for sales 2,861,399 - 2,861,399 .
Fo employees for compensation and fringe benefits {3,050,239) (23,132) {3,073,371)
To vendors for goods and services {3,444,724) (4,941,313) {8,386,037)
Net cash provided by operating activities 547,315 (51,656) 495,659 '
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets (249,227) - (249,227)
Capital graut 480 - 430 '
Insurance recovery for damaged equipment 13,799 - 13,799
Advance from general fund 26,435 - 26,435 ‘
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 81,628 - 81,628 '
Net cash used for capital and related financing activities {126,885) - (126,885)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received - 248,596 248,596
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 420,430 196,940 617,370
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 200 4,702,753 4,702,953 l
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 3 420,630 $ 4,899,693 $ 5320323 .
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income $ (67442) $ (205728 $  (273,170)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 639,059 - 639,059
Changes in operating assets and Habilities:
Accounts receivable 20,287 5,591 31,878
Due from other governmenits 15,617 - 15,617
Prepaid expenses (293) - (295) )
Inventories (71,896) - (71,896) :
Accounts payable 84,364 (9,689) 74,675 ok
Due other funds (179,723) - (179,723) gt
Accraed expenses 13,536 1,254 14,790 o :
Compensated absences 49,197 - 49,197 | .
Deferred revenue 38,611 - 38,611 e
Acerued claims - 156,916 156,916 . G l
Total adjustments 614,757 154,072 768,829
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 547315 $_ (51656) § 495650




LINCOLN COUNTY, WISCONSIN
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
December 31, 2008
Agency Funds
Employee Clerk of
Benefit Court
Cafeteria Plan - Collection Fund Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,126 $ - 23,126
Accounts receivable - 805,669 805,669
Total assets $ 23,126 by 805,669 828,795
LIABILITIES
Deposits and advances 16,721 - 16,721
Due other governments - 805,669 805,669
DPue to other funds 6,405 - 6,405
Total liabilities $ 23,126 $ 805,669 828,795
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